




For the City Engineer

4/1/22

 

04/01/2022

































































































EP-22-0013_1 CSU Wilson Tank 

12:01 PM, 8/31/21 

 

      

August 31, 2021 Karen Berry 

State Geologist 

  
 

William Gray 

Planning and Community Development 

30 S. Nevada Avenue, Suite 105 

P.O. Box 1575, MC 155 

Colorado Springs, CO 80901 
 

Location: 
N½ SW¼ NW¼ Sec. 15  

T13S, R67W of the 6th PM 

38.9221°, -104.8849° 

Subject: CSU Wilson Tank Site Development Plan and Final Plat, AR DP 21-00526 and 

AR FP 21-00527, Colorado Springs, El Paso County, CO, CGS Unique No. EP-22-0013 

Dear William, 

 

The Colorado Geological Survey (CGS) has reviewed the CSU Wilson Tank site development plan and final 

plat referral.  We understand the applicant proposes a new water storage tank and associated site 

improvements at 6570 Alabaster Way.  With this referral, CGS received a request for review (Emails dated 

August 19, 2021), Application (Kimley Horn and Associates, Inc., July 29, 2021), Development Plan 

(Kimley Horn, undated), Drainage Report (Kimley Horn, July 30, 2021), and Preliminary Geologic Hazards 

Study (Terracon Consultants, Inc., July 27, 2021).   Terracon references a Geotechnical Engineering Report 

in their Geologic Hazards study; however, this study was not provided in the referral documents.  

 
The site is not within any known landslides or mapped Colorado Springs landslide-susceptible area (White 
and Wait, 2003).  CGS agrees with Terracon’s assessment (page i) that the potential geologic hazards at the 
site that may impact the proposed development include the potential to encounter localized man-made slope 
instability and steeply dipping bedrock within foundation bearing elevations.  Kimley Horn’s development 
plan and available LiDAR show slopes around 50 percent descending toward the proposed tank.   Terracon 
indicates on page 5, “Apparent signs of instability of the existing slopes in the form of scarps, surficial 
cracking, and/or surficial instability was not observed.”   
 
Terracon’s assessment of the geologic hazards are valid; CGS offers the following comments/concerns and 
recommendations: 
 
Site-Specific Geology:  Terracon references the Pikeview 7.5 Quadrangle Geologic Map (Thornson, J.P., 

Carroll, C.J., and Morgan, M.L., 2001) on page 3 of the report.   However, the Cascade 7.5 Quadrangle 

Geologic Map (Morgan et al., 2004), which encompasses the project area, is presented in the site 

attachments.  The Cascade Quadrangle should also be referenced in the report. 

 

Faulting:  Terracon does not address the Rampart Range Fault, which is less than ½ mile from the site, nor 

the series of faults that may traverse the project area (Morgan et al., 2004, Geologic Map of the Cascade 

Quadrangle, El Paso County, Colorado, CGS).  CGS recommends Terracon discuss the hazards 

associated with the structural features (faults) shown on the Cascade Quadrangle that traverse within 

and near the site in the report.  CGS also recommends that appropriate seismic factors be incorporated in 

the design of the proposed tank structure. 
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Slope Stability Analysis: As noted on page 5 of Terracon’s report, “The existing and proposed relatively 

steep slopes along the west and south sides of the proposed tank create a risk for localized man-made 

unstable slopes at this location.”  CGS agrees with Terracon’s recommendation that “a slope stability 

analysis be performed to confirm the long term stability of the slopes.”  The slope stability analysis must be 

based on soil/bedrock geometry along the length of the slope section, shear strength values measured from 

site-specific samples and laboratory testing, and groundwater levels that may be anticipated in the area 

(perched conditions).  Also, seismic factors should be included in the analysis that considers the Rampart 

Range Fault zone.   

 

Dipping Bedrock: The site is located within the Hillside Overlay and is mapped about 150 feet west of an area 

mapped as susceptible to differential heave in expansive, steeply dipping bedrock (>30º). Terracon encountered 

bedrock at depths ranging from 3½ to 37 feet below the existing grade. CGS agrees with Terracon’s assessment 

that “Although not observed in the bedrock samples obtained from our borings, it is our opinion that dipping 

bedrock is likely present at this site.” We also agree with Terracon’s recommendation “The proposed tank 

should be constructed on shallow foundations supported on a minimum 10-foot thick zone of structural fill, such 

that a minimum 10-foot separation exists between the lowest foundation element and the top of bedrock.”  CGS 

recommends that Terracon provide material properties (gradation specifications, use of on-site vs. import 

materials, etc.), earthwork recommendations for the structural fill material, and potential movement 

estimates (total and differential) if not provided in the Geotechnical Engineering Report. In addition, the 

project team and contractor should anticipate difficult excavation conditions within the on-site bedrock.   
 

Geo-Hazard Disclosure Statement: Per the City ordinance, the statement (as presented on sheet 1 of the 

development plan) must list the geologic hazards identified at this site. We recommend that the City 

require the disclosure statement to follow the ordinance by listing the identified geologic hazards at 

the site.   

  

In summary, CGS has no objection to approval of the development plan and final plat provided Terracon’s 

recommendations are adhered to, and CGS’s comments and suggestions presented in this letter are 

addressed. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on this project.  If you have questions or require further 

review, please call me at 303-384-2632 or email acrandall@mines.edu. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
 

Amy Crandall, P.E.   
Engineering Geologist 
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January 14, 2022 Karen Berry 

State Geologist 

  
 

William Gray 

Planning and Community Development 

30 S. Nevada Avenue, Suite 105 

P.O. Box 1575, MC 155 

Colorado Springs, CO 80901 
 

Location: 
N½ SW¼ NW¼ Sec. 15  

T13S, R67W of the 6th PM 

38.9221°, -104.8849° 

Subject: CSU Wilson Tank Site Development Plan and Final Plat, AR DP 21-00526 and 

AR FP 21-00527, Colorado Springs, El Paso County, CO, CGS Unique No. EP-22-0013 

Dear William, 

 

The Colorado Geological Survey (CGS) has reviewed the CSU Wilson Tank site development plan and final 

plat resubmittal.  With this resubmittal, CGS received a request for review (Email dated December 29, 

2021), Comment Response Letter (Kimley Horn and Associates, Inc., December 13, 2021), Development 

Plan (Kimley Horn, undated), Drainage Report (Kimley Horn, July 30, 2021), Geologic Hazards Study 

(Terracon Consultants, Inc. (Terracon), Revised November 18, 2021), and Geotechnical Engineering Report 

(Terracon, Revised November 18, 2021).    

 

Terracon's revised geologic hazards report and geotechnical engineering report adequately address our previous 

comments and concerns.  For example, Terracon’s slope stability analysis presented in the geotechnical 

engineering report for the proposed slopes and the discussion of long-term slope stability address our concerns 

regarding the steep slopes along the west and south sides of the proposed tank.  Terracon’s recommendations for 

surficial slope stability (page 15) should be strictly adhered to.  Specifically, “Irrigated landscaping should not 

be used on or near the crest of slopes” and “Slopes should be re-vegetated as soon as possible after grading and 

protected from erosion until vegetation is established.”   

 

Provided Terrcon’s recommendations are adhered to, CGS has no objection to approval of the development 

plan and final plat.  

 

Geo-Hazard Disclosure Statement: Per the City ordinance, the statement (as presented on sheet 1 of the 

development plan) must list the geologic hazards identified at this site and reference Terracon’s most up-to-

date geologic hazard report (November 18, 2021). We recommend that the City require the disclosure 

statement to follow the ordinance by listing the identified geologic hazards at the site.   

 

Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on this project.  If you have questions or require further 

review, please call me at 303-384-2632 or email acrandall@mines.edu. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Amy Crandall, P.E.   
Engineering Geologist 
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